
 
ADA Notice: For special accommodations for this event, please contact the Planning 
Division at 785-368-3728 at least three working days in advance. 

 
 
 
 
 

Thursday, February 8, 2024 
5:30 P.M. 

 
Zoom Video Conference 

 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

 
Melina Stewart  (2023 Chair)  

Dave Freder ick (2023 Vice Chair)  
Donna Rae Pearson  

Mark Burenheide 
David Heit  

Grant Sourk 
Christ ine Steinkuehler  

Cassandra Taylor  
Nic Ir ick 

 

 

 

• The Topeka Landmarks Commission holds a public meeting on the 2nd Thursday of each month. 
  

• The following agenda identifies and describes each proposal to be considered by the Commission. 
 

• Each item to be considered by the Commission will be introduced by the Planning Division Staff. The 
Commission will then hear and consider arguments both for and against each proposal.  

 

• Individuals wishing to address the Commission are requested to state their name and address for the official 
record. 

 

• Motions on all matters which require a decision by the Commission, are made in the affirmative. On a roll call 
vote, Commission members then vote yes, no, or abstain based on the affirmative motion. 

 

• The owner of the local historic landmark or property owner within the local historic district may appeal the 
Commission’s decision to the City Council by submitting a notice of appeal to the Planning Director within 10 
calendar days of the decision. 

 
 

LANDMARKS COMMISSION  

A G E N D A 
 



 
ADA Notice: For special accommodations for this event, please contact the Planning 
Division at 785-368-3728 at least three working days in advance. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            Agenda for Thursday February 8, 2024   

 
 
 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Approval of Minutes from December 14, 2023 

C. Announcement of Potential Conflicts 

D. Action Items 

1. CLGR24/03 by Stephen Pease, requesting a review under Kansas State Preservation Law 

Review [K.S.A. 75-2724] for the installation of solar panels at 1115 SW Western Ave.    

2. Election of 2024 Landmarks Commission Officers 

i. Chair  

ii. Vice-Chair  

iii. Design Review Committee  

E. Other Items 

F. Adjournment 

 

LANDMARKS COMMISSION  



 

 

 

Thursday, December 14, 2023 

5:30PM 
Zoom Video Conference 

Landmarks COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES  
 

Members present: Dave Frederick, David Heit, Donna Rae Pearson, Grant Sourk, Melina Stewart, Christine 

Steinkuehler, Cassandra Taylor (7) 

Members Absent: MMe Cassandra Taylor   Mark Burenheide, Nic Irick   

Staff Present: Michael Hall, Landuse Planning Manager; William Sharp, Planner; Amanda Tituana-

Feijoo, Administrative Officer 

 

   Roll Call – Commissioner Stewart called the meeting to order with 7 members present for a quorum.  
 

   Approval of Minutes from November 9, 2023 – Motion by Commissioner Sourk; Second by Commissioner Heit. 
Commissioner Stewart abstained.  APPROVED (6-0-1) 

 
   Declaration of conflict of interest/ex parte communications –NA  

 

 1. CLGR 23/20 by 424 QOZB LLC, requesting a review under Kansas State Preservation Law 
Review [K.S.A. 75-2724] for the reuse and rehabilitation of the lower basement level of the U.S. Post Office 
and Federal Court House at 424 S Kansas Avenue. 
 
Staff: 
William Sharp presented the staff report and staff’s recommendation for approval.   
 
Owner’s Representatives:  

John Sampson, Falk Architects 
Ken Schmanke, Owner    
Pat Younkin, SEC 
Bob Henthorne, SEC 
 

Mr. Schmanke stated that nothing is being done that would affect the historical portions or integrity of the 
property.  

There were no comments or questions by Commissioners.  

 
Motion by Commissioner Sourk, second by Commissioner Heit: Concur with staff’s findings that the 
proposed interior alterations to the building at 424 S Kansas Avenue is consistent with the recommendations 
outlined in the Downtown Topeka Design Guidelines, and will not damage or destroy the historical integrity of the 
structure. Carried 7-0 
 

Other Non - Action Items- NA 
 
With nothing more on the agenda, the meeting adjourned at 5:45pm.    



February 1, 2024 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT  
KANSAS HISTORIC PRESERVATION LAW 

PROJECT REVIEW REPORT 
TOPEKA LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

 
CASE NO: CLGR24/03         by:  Stephen Pease  
Project Address: 1115 SW Western Ave 
Property Classification: Contributing structure to the Holliday Park Historic District  
Standards: Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation 
 
Attachments: Site Plan  [   ]       Elevations  [ ]       Arch./Const. Plans [X]        Pictures [X] 

 
PROPOSAL:  
This proposal is for the installation of roof-mounted solar panels on the north and south portions of 
the roof at 1115 SW Western Avenue.  The property is a contributing structure to the Holliday Park 
Historic District.   
 
The Design Review Committee reviewed the proposal on January 23rd and concluded with a 
recommendation of approval.  The limited scope and minimal impact of this proposal suggests it 
be approved by the Design Review Committee or staff but, because the Landmarks Commission 
has seen few if any proposals for solar panels in the past, recommended the proposal be placed on 
the Commission’s agenda.   
     

 
1115 SW Western Ave view from sidewalk 

 
 



February 1, 2024 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

BACKGROUND:  
 
The Holliday Park Historic District was nominated to the National Register of Historic Places in 
2002.  According to the nomination listing, the district was “Nominated to the National Register 
under criteria A for association with the growth and development of Topeka and under criteria C 
for its architectural significance as a unique grouping of late nineteenth and early twentieth century 
residential architecture”.  The period of significance for the district was from 1885-1939.  Tree 
lined streets with sidewalks and brick paved streets are common in the neighborhood with many 
original stone curbs lining the streets.  The architectural styles of the houses range from Italianate 
and Queen Anne to Romanesque and Colonial Revival.  
 
1115 SW Western Ave is a 2 story Queen Anne variant with a hip roof with an intersecting front 
gable.  The structure maintains a high level of architectural integrity.  The house was constructed 
between 1905-1907, which corresponded with the residential construction that was happening in 
the Holliday Park neighborhood at the time.  The property also has a detached garage that is 
considered contributing to the district.   
 
PROJECT DETAILS:   
  
The project involves installation of solar panels on the north and south sides of the gable roof in a 
manner hardly visible from the street.  A site plan of the location of the panels is provided.   
 
A total of ten solar panels will be attached to the roof with mounting brackets and screws. Four will 
be installed on the north side of the gable roof and six will be installed on the south side in two 
groups of three panels.   The panels will not be installed on the front slope of the roof or front 
façade of the house.    The panels will have a maximum extension of 6 inches from the roof.  The 
solar panels will not project or extend out from the structure, leaving the profile of the panels 
partially visible but not obstructing any character defining architectural features of the house or 
altering the mass or scale of the structure. 
 
   
 

 
View from street 



February 1, 2024 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
Roof mounting details 

The proposed installation has gone through the building permit application process and 
has been reviewed and approved by city staff for compliance.     
 

 
Solar panel installation site plan 

 
 



February 1, 2024 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

REVIEW SUMMARY: The Kansas State Historic Preservation Office requires that all projects 
occurring on any property listed on the Register of Historic Kansas Places be reviewed for their 
effect on the listed property and the surrounding district. State law (K.S.A. 75-2724) establishes 
that the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation be used to evaluate changes 
proposed to any property that is individually listed, or is located within an historic district. The 
following is an analysis of the application of each Standard to the proposed project. 
 
Standard 1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its 
site and environment.  

 

Analysis: No change of use is expected with the property and it is anticipated that the 
property will continue on with its historic use as a residential dwelling. The 
property is zoned “R-2” Single-Family Dwelling District and the zoning district 
encompasses most of the Holiday Park neighborhood.  The area went through a 
neighborhood-wide rezoning in 1998.   

 
Standard 2. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal 

of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a 
property shall be avoided.  

 

Analysis: The scope of work for the project is taking place on the north and south sides of 
the gable roof.  ITS Number 52, Incorporating Solar Panels in a Rehabilitation 
Project, states that solar panels may be “minimally visible, to avoid altering the 
historic character of the building”.  The placement of the panels could possibly be 
visible from the sidewalk or street.  However, the view of the panels will be 
partially obstructed and will not alter any significant architectural feature of the 
structure.   

 
Standard 3. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. 

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken.  

 

Analysis: From ITS Number 52, “Enhancing the energy efficiency of a historic building is 
important.  To that end, it is often possible to install features such as solar panels 
and photovoltaic cells provided they are installed in a sensitive manner”. The 
Secretary of the Interior and National Park Service both recognize that 
modernizing historic buildings to make them more energy efficient is important in 
the life-cycle of the structure.  Placing solar panels on a structure away from the 
front elevation and towards the side and rear of the structure is compatible with 
rehabilitation standards.   

 

Standard 4. Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic 
significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved.  

 

Analysis: Installation of the panels will only affect part of the gable roof on the north and 
south side.  Roofing materials consist of composition shingles.  

 

Standard 5. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved.  

 

Analysis: No architectural features are proposed to be removed or demolished with the 
installation of the panels.   



February 1, 2024 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

Standard 6. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the 
severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities 
and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be 
substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.  

 

Analysis: N/A 
 

Standard 7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 
historic materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible.  

 

Analysis:  N/A 
 

Standard 8. Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 
preserved. If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken.  

 

Analysis: N/A  
 

 Standard 9.  New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 
historic materials that characterize the property. The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, 
and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment.  

 

Analysis: The panels will be attached to the roof with mounts and screws.  The panels will 
project out onto the roof with a separation of six inches between them and the roof.  
A total of ten panels will be installed.  Four on the north side gable roof, three 
panels on the southeast portion of the roof, and three panels to be installed towards 
the rear on the southwest portion.  The massing, size, and scale is not anticipated 
to change significantly with the solar panel installation.   

 
Standard 10.  New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of 
the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired.  

 

Analysis: Possible future removal of the solar panels will not impact the historic integrity of 
the house.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: In the performance of this review under KSA 75-2724, Staff is 
recommending a finding that the proposed exterior alteration to the building at 1115 SW Western 
Avenue IS CONSISTENT with Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and 
will NOT damage or destroy the historical integrity of the structure.   
 
Prepared by:  William Sharp, Planner II 
 
 APPEAL TO THE GOVERNING BODY: If the Landmarks Commission determines that the 
proposed treatment will damage or destroy the historic integrity of the property and/or the 
surrounding historic district, the applicant may appeal to the governing body.  It will be incumbent 
upon the governing body to make a determination, after consideration of all relevant factors, that: 
(1) there are no feasible and prudent alternatives to the removal of interior features; and (2) that 



February 1, 2024 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

alternatives to the project include all possible planning to minimize harm to the property that may 
result from those alternatives.   



ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

· ELECTRIC CODE:NEC 2017
· FIRE CODE:IFC 2015
·BUILDING CODE:IBC 2015
·RESIDENTIAL CODE:IRC 2015

APPLICABLE CODES

COVER PAGE-1

T-01SCALE:1"=20'-0"

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960

1.MODULES ARE LISTED UNDER UL 1703/61730 
AND CONFORM TO THE STANDARDS.
2.INVERTERS ARE LISTED UNDER UL 1741 AND 
CONFORM TO THE STANDARDS.
3.DRAWINGS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC, INDICATING 
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT OF THE PV SYSTEM AND 
THE ACTUAL SITE CONDITION MIGHT VARY.
4.WORKING CLEARANCES AROUND THE NEW PV 
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT WILL BE MAINTAINED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH NEC 110.26.
5.ALL GROUND WIRING CONNECTED TO THE MAIN 
SERVICE GROUNDING IN MAIN SERVICE PANEL/ 
SERVICE EQUIPMENT.
6.ALL CONDUCTORS SHALL BE 600V, 90°C 
STANDARD COPPER UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
7.WHEN REQUIRED, A LADDER SHALL BE IN PLACE 
FOR INSPECTION IN COMPLIANCE WITH OSHA 
REGULATIONS.
8.THE SYSTEM WILL NOT BE INTERCONNECTED BY 
THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL APPROVAL FROM THE 
LOCAL JURISDICTION AND/OR THE UTILITY.
9.ROOF ACCESS POINT SHALL BE LOCATED IN 
AREAS THAT DO NOT REQUIRE THE PLACEMENT 
OF GROUND LADDERS OVER OPENINGS SUCH AS 
WINDOWS OR DOORS, AND LOCATED AT STRONG 
POINTS OF BUILDING CONSTRUCTION WHERE THE 
ACCESS POINT DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH 
OVERHEAD OBSTRUCTIONS SUCH AS TREES, 
WIRES OR SIGNS.
10.PV ARRAY COMBINER/JUNCTION BOX 
PROVIDES TRANSITION FROM ARRAY WIRING TO 
CONDUIT WIRING

GENERAL NOTES

DETACHED STRUCTURE

SHEET CATALOG
INDEX NO. DESCRIPTION

T-01 COVER PAGE

G-01 GENERAL NOTES

S-01 MOUNTING DETAIL

S-02 STRUCTURAL DETAIL

E-01 THREE LINE DIAGRAM

E-02 ELECTRICAL CALCULATIONS

PL-01 WARNING PLACARDS

SS SPEC SHEET(S)

ENGINEERING SCOPE OF WORK
1. ILLUMINE INTERNATIONAL INC. HAS ONLY PROVIDED DRAFTING SERVICES FOR THE PERMIT DRAWINGS. NO ACTUAL ENGINEERING WORK, ENGINEERING REVIEW OR

ENGINEERING APPROVAL HAS BEEN CONDUCTED BY ILLUMINE INDUSTRIES INC UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
2.WHEN A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER APPROVES AND SEALS THE DESIGN FOR COMPONENTS OF THEIR RESPECTIVE DISCIPLINE (STRUCTURAL/ELECTRICAL) SHOWN ON THESE

PERMIT DRAWINGS, HE/SHE:
a. TAKES FULL DIRECT CONTROL OF THE ENGINEERED DESIGN
b.IS GIVEN ACCESS TO PERSONALLY SUPERVISE AND RECTIFY ANY ASPECT OF THE ENGINEERED DESIGN
c.HAS FULLY ACCEPTED RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ENGINEERED DESIGN

VICINITY MAP

GATE

SITE PLAN LAYOUT

STEPHEN PEASE - 3.800kW DC, 2.900kW AC

GENERAL SYSTEM INFORMATION:
SYSTEM SIZE:
3.800kW DC, 2.900kW AC
MODULES:
(10)SILFAB SIL-380HC (380W)
INVERTER:
(10)ENPHASE IQ8PLUS-72-2-US (240V),
BRANCH DETAILS:
1X10 ENPHASE BRANCH

SCOPE OF WORK
(E) MAIN SERVICE PANEL (INTERIOR)

(E) UTILITY METER (EXTERIOR)
(N) PV METER(EXTERIOR)

(N) PV AC DISCONNECT (EXTERIOR)
(N) ENPHASE IQ COMBINER 4 (EXTERIOR)

162'

162'

73'-4"

1'-8"

29'

9'-11"

3' FIRE SETBACK

1'-6" FIRE SETBACK

D
R
IV

EW
A
Y

S
O

U
TH

W
ES

T 
W

ES
TE

R
N

 A
V
EN

U
E

WALKWAY

WALKWAY

POWER LINE

GATE WITH FENCE

GATE WITH FENCE
PROPERTY LINE

PERIMETER FENCE

(N) PHOTOVOLTAIC ARRAY ON THE ROOF

GATE

FENCE

STRUCTURAL ONLY 
       01/12/2024



GENERAL NOTES

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960

GENERAL NOTES

G-01

ROOF ACCESS PATHWAYS AND SETBACKS:

· IFC 605.11.1 ACCESS AND PATHWAYS. ROOF ACCESS, PATHWAYS AND SPACING REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 605.11.1 THROUGH 605.11.1.3.3.

· EXCEPTION: 1. DETACHED. NON HABITABLE GROUP U STRUCTURES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PARKING SHADE STRUCTURES, CARPORTS, SOLAR TRELISES AND SIMILAR STRUCTURES. 2. ROOF ACCESS, PATHWAYS AND 
SPACING REQUIREMENTS NEED NOT BE PROVIDED WHERE THE FIRE CHIEF HAS DETERMINED THAT ROOFTOP OPERATIONS WILL NOT BE EMPLOYED.

· IFC 605.11.1.2.3 SINGLE-RIDGE ROOFS PANELS AND MODULES INSTALLED ON GROUP R-3 BUILDINGS WITH A SINGLE RIDGE SHALL BE LOCATED IN A MANNER THAT PROVIDES TWO, 3-FOOT WIDE(914 MM) ACCESS PATHWAYS FROM 
THE EAVE TO THE RIDGE ON EACH ROOF SLOPE WHERE PANELS AND MODULES ARE LOCATED.

· EXCEPTION: THIS REQUIREMENTS SHALL NOT APPLY TO ROOFS WITH SLOPES OF TWO UNITS VERTICAL IN 12 UNITS HORIZONTAL(2:12)OR LESS.

· IFC 605.11.1.2.4 ROOFS WITH HIPS AND VALLEYS: PANELS AND MODULES INSTALLED ON GROUP R-3 BUILDINGS WITH ROOF HIPS AND VALLEYS SHALL NOT BE LOCATED CLOSER THAN 18 INCHES(457 MM) TO A HIP OR A VALLEY 
WHERE A PANELS/MODULES ARE TO BE PLACED ON BOTH SIDES OF A HIP OR VALLEY. WHERE PANELS ARE TO BE LOCATED ON  ONLY ONE SIDE OF A HIP OR VALLEY THAT IS OF EQUAL LENGTH, THE PANELS SHALL BE PERMITTED TO BE 
PLACED DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO THE HIP OR VALLEY.

· EXCEPTION: THESE REQUIREMENTS SHALL NOT APPLY TO ROOFS WITH SLOPES OF TWO UNITS VERTICAL IN 12 UNITS HORIZONTAL(2:12)OR LESS.

· IFC 605.11.1.3 OTHER GROUP R-3 BUILDINGS: ACCESS TO SYSTEMS FOR BUILDINGS, OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINING GROUP R-3 OCCUPANCIES, SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS605.11.1.3.1 THROUGH 
605.11.1.3.3.

· EXCEPTION: WHERE IT IS DETERMINED BY THE FIRE CODE OFFICIAL THAT THE ROOF CONFIGURATION IS SIMILAR TO THAT OF A GROUP R-3 OCCUPANCY, THE RESIDENTIAL ACCESS AND VENTILATION REQUIREMENTS IN SECTIONS 
605.11.1.2.1 THROUGH 605.11.1.2.5 SHALL BE PERMITTED TO BE USED.

· IFC 605.11.1.3.1 ACCESS: THERE SHALL BE A MINIMUM 6- FOOT WIDE(1829 MM) CLEAR PERIMETER AROUND THE EDGES OF THE ROOF.

· EXCEPTION: WHERE EITHER AXIS OF THE BUILDING IS 250 FEET(76 200MM)OR LESS, THE CLEAR PERIMETER AROUND THE EDGES OF THE ROOF SHALL BE PERMITTED TO BE REDUCED TO A MINIMUM 4 FOOT WIDE(1290MM).

· IFC 605.11.1.3.2 PATHWAYS: THE SOLAR INSTALLATION SHALL BE DESIGNED TO PROVIDE DESIGNATED PATHWAYS. THE PATHWAYS SHALL MEET THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 1. THE PATHWAYS SHALL BE OVER AREAS CAPABLE 
OF SUPPORTING FIRE FIGHTERS ACCESSING THE ROOF. 2. THE CENTERLINE AXIS PATHWAYS  SHALL BE PROVIDED IN BOTH AXES OF THE ROOF. CENTERLINE AXIS PATHWAYS SHALL RUN WHERE THE ROOF STRUCTURE IS CAPABLE OF 
SUPPORTING FIRE FIGHTERS ACCESSING THE ROOF. 3. PATHWAYS SHALL BE A STRAIGHT LINE NOT LESS THAN 4 FEET(1290 MM)CLEAR TO ROOF STANDPIPES OR VENTILATION HATCHES. 4. PATHWAYS SHALL PROVIDE NOT LESS THAN 
4 FEET(1290 MM) CLEAR AROUND ROOF ACCESS HATCH WITH NOT LESS THAN ONE SINGULAR PATHWAY NOT LESS THAN 4 FEET(1290 MM) CLEAR TO A PARAPET OR ROOF EDGE.

· IFC 605.11.3.2.1 RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS WITH HIP ROOF LAYOUTS. PANELS/MODULES INSTALLED ON RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS WITH HIP ROOF LAYOUTS SHALL BE LOCATED IN A MANNER THAT PROVIDES A 3-FOOT-WIDE 
(914 MM) CLEAR ACCESS PATHWAY FROM THE EAVE TO THE RIDGE ON EACH ROOF SLOPE WHERE PANELS/MODULES ARE LOCATED. THE ACCESS PATHWAY SHALL BE LOCATED AT A STRUCTURALLY STRONG LOCATION ON THE BUILDING 
CAPABLE OF SUPPORTING THE LIVE LOAD OF FIRE FIGHTERS ACCESSING THE ROOF.

· IFC 605.11.3.2.2RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS WITH A SINGLE RIDGE. PANELS/MODULES INSTALLED ON RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS WITH A SINGLE RIDGE SHALL BE LOCATED IN A MANNER THAT PROVIDES TWO, 3-FOOT-WIDE (914 
MM) ACCESS PATHWAYS FROM THE EAVE TO THE RIDGE ON EACH ROOF SLOPE WHERE PANELS/MODULES ARE LOCATED.

· IFC 605.11.3.2.3 RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS WITH ROOF HIPS AND VALLEYS. PANELS/MODULES INSTALLED ON RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS WITH ROOF HIPS AND VALLEYS SHALL BE LOCATED NO CLOSER THAN 18 INCHES (457 MM) 
TO A HIP OR A VALLEY WHERE PANELS/MODULES ARE TO BE PLACED ON BOTH SIDES OF A HIP OR VALLEY. WHERE PANELS ARE TO BE LOCATED ON ONLY ONE SIDE OF A HIP OR VALLEY THAT IS OF EQUAL LENGTH, THE PANELS SHALL 
BE PERMITTED TO BE PLACED DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO THE HIP OR VALLEY.

· IFC 605.11.3.2.4 RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SMOKE VENTILATION. PANELS/MODULES INSTALLED ON RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS SHALL BE LOCATED NO HIGHER THAN 3 FEET (914 MM) BELOW THE RIDGE IN ORDER TO ALLOW FOR 
FIRE DEPARTMENT SMOKE VENTILATION OPERATIONS.

STRUCTURAL ONLY 
       01/12/2024



AERIAL VIEW

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960

MOUNTING DETAIL

S-01

NOTE(N):PENETRATIONS ARE STAGGERED

ARRAY MP-01

ALUMINUM RAILS

SITE INFORMATION - WIND SPEED: 115 MPH AND SNOW LOAD: 20 PSF

SR. NO AZIMUTH PITCH NO. OF
MODULES

ARRAY AREA
(SQ. FT.) ROOF TYPE ATTACHMENT ROOF

EXPOSURE FRAME TYPE FRAME
SIZE

FRAME
SPACING

MAX RAIL
SPAN OVER HANG

MP-01 180° 36° 3 59.0 COMPOSITION
SHINGLE

BUTYL BOTTOM
DECK MOUNT ATTIC RAFTERS 2 X 4 2'-0" 4'-0" 1'-6"

MP-02 359° 36° 4 78.7 COMPOSITION
SHINGLE

BUTYL BOTTOM
DECK MOUNT ATTIC RAFTERS 2 X 4 2'-0" 4'-0" 1'-6"

MP-03 180° 12° 3 59.0 COMPOSITION
SHINGLE

BUTYL BOTTOM
DECK MOUNT ATTIC RAFTERS 2 X 4 2'-0" 4'-0" 1'-6"

ARRAY MP-02

4'

ARRAY MP-03

SCALE:3/16" = 1'-0"

3'

1'-6"

3'

3'

3'

3'
1'-6"

3'

1'-6"

1'-6"

3'

3'

1'-6"

1'-6"

STRUCTURAL ONLY 
       01/12/2024



MID CLAMPMODULE MODULEEND CLAMP

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960

STRUCTURAL DETAIL

S-02

MID-CLAMP AND END-CLAMP ANATOMY

5/16"-18 SS BOLT
SS SPLIT LOCK WASHER
(TORQUE TO 16FT-LBS)

GROUNDING LUG

BOUNDING
CHANNEL NUT

PEGASUS RAIL

6-12 AWG BARE
COPPER WIRE

NOTES:
· ALL HARDWARE IS INCLUDED FROM MANUFACTURER
· A MINIMUM OF ONE GROUND LUG IS TO BE INSTALLED ON EVERY CONTINUOUS 

ROW OF MODULES
· GROUNDING LUG MAY BE INSTALLED IN EITHER RAIL CHANNEL
· GROUNDING LUG MAY BE INSTALLED SO GROUND WIRE IS PARALLEL OR 

PERPENDICULAR TO RAIL
· ENSURE SPLIT LOCK WASHER IS INSTALLED ON TOP OF COPPER WIRE. 

SCALE:NTS

GROUNDING

SS BONDING PIN

MID CLAMP
ASSEMBLY

MODULE
FRAME

RAIL

CHANNEL NUT

MODULE TO MODULE & MODULE TO RAIL

GROUNDING MID-CLAMP
SCALE: NTS

GROUNDING DETAILS

 RAIL

 INTERNAL SPLICE

SELF-DRILLING SCREW

 SCALE: NTS

RAIL TO RAIL

INSTALLATION NOTES
1.STRUCTURAL ROOF MEMBER LOCATIONS 
ARE ESTIMATED AND SHOULD BE LOCATED 
AND VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR WHEN 
LAG BOLT PENETRATION OR MECHANICAL 
ATTACHMENT TO THE STRUCTURE IS 
REQUIRED.
2.ROOFTOP PENETRATIONS FOR SOLAR
RACKING WILL BE COMPLETED AND SEALED
WITH APPROVED SEALANT PER CODE BY A
LICENSED CONTRACTOR.
3.LAGS MUST HAVE A MINIMUM 1/2"
THREAD EMBEDMENT INTO THE
STRUCTURAL MEMBER.
4.ALL PV RACKING ATTACHMENTS SHALL BE
STAGGERED BY ROW BETWEEN THE ROOF
FRAMING MEMBERS AS NECESSARY.
5.ROOF MOUNTED STANDARD RAIL 
REQUIRES ONE THERMAL EXPANSION GAP 
FOR EVERY RUN OF RAIL GREATER THAN 
40'.
6.ALL CONDUCTORS AND CONDUITS ON 
THE ROOF SHALL BE  MINIMUM 1-1/2" 
ABOVE THE ROOF SURFACE (INCLUDING 
CABLES UNDERNEATH MODULES AND 
RACKING).
7.THE PV INSTALLATION SHALL NOT 
OBSTRUCT ANY PLUMBING, MECHANICAL 
OR BUILDING ROOF VENTS.

DEAD LOAD CALCULATIONS

BOM QUANTITY LBS/UNIT TOTAL WEIGHT
(LBS)

MODULES 10 43 430.00

MID-CLAMP 14 0.170 2.38

END-CLAMP 12 0.300 3.60

RAIL LENGTH 84 0.790 66.36

SPLICE BAR 0 0.650 0.00

BUTYL BOTTOM
DECK MOUNT 26 0.55 14.30

MICROINVERTER 10 2.38 23.80

TOTAL WEIGHT OF THE SYSTEM (LBS) 540.44

TOTAL ARRAY AREA ON THE ROOF (SQ. FT.) 196.63

WEIGHT PER SQ. FT.(LBS) 2.75

WEIGHT PER PENETRATION (LBS) 20.79

MODULES DATA
SILFAB SIL-380HC (380W)

MODULE DIMS 69.4"x40.8"x1.38"

LAG SCREWS 5/16" X 2 1/2" : 1/2" MIN EMBEDMENT

ATTACHMENT DETAIL-QUICKBOLT BUTYL BOTTOM DECK MOUNT

2 X 4 RAFTERS @ 2'-0" SPACING

COMPOSITION SHINGLE ROOF

MODULE

LOAD BEARING WALL
SCALE:NTS

5/16" X 2 1/2" LAG SCREWS
4 LAG SCREWS PER ATTACHMENT

ROOF FRAMING DETAILS

SCALE:NTS

BUTYL BOTTOM
DECK MOUNT

SOLAR MODULE

PEGASUS RAIL

(4) 5/16" x 2 1/2" LAG SCREWS, THROUGH ROOF
DECKING W/ 1/2" MIN EMBEDMENT

6" MAX

(E) ROOF DECK

(E) FRAMING SEE SHEET S-01

STRUCTURAL ONLY 
       01/12/2024



G G G

G

(1) BRANCH OF (10) MICROINVERTERS

(N)(10)SILFAB SIL-380HC (380W) MODULES WITH
(N)(10)ENPHASE IQ8PLUS-72-2-US (240V)

G

ENPHASE Q CABLE

DC CONDUCTORS

AC CONDUCTORS

MICROINVERTER

G

(N)JUNCTION
BOX.1A 1

(N)JUNCTION
BOX.23

AC COMBINER BOX
X-IQ-AM1-240-4 120/240V
NEMA 3R INSTALL
(1)20A PV 2P BREAKER
(ONLY FOR SOLAR, NO
LOADS TO BE ADDED)

(N) ENPHASE IQ
COMBINER 4

20A

(N)60A AC
DISCONNECT

G

40A FUSE

EATON DG222NRB
PV SYSTEM AC
DISCONNECT KNIFE
BLADE  FUSED, 60A,
120/240V 2P

3

(E)225A END FED
MAIN PANEL

UTILITY
GRID

(E
)2

00
A
 M

A
IN

B
R
EA

K
ER

PV BREAKER AT THE
OPPOSITE END OF
BUSBAR

(E) GROUND
ELECTRODE

20A 2P PV
BREAKERN

G

EXISTING 120/240V 1PH 60HZ

METER#:EVERGY (KS)
40 481 918M

LOADS

(N)PV METER

G

M

MILBANK CAT #U8435-RL-TG,
125A 4T RL OU,PV METER
120/240V KWH METER FORM 2S,
125A 120/240

3

THIS IS AN EVERGY CENTRAL
PROJECT AND REQUIRES A
PRODUCTION METER. THIS
PRODUCTION METER GETS
WIRED IN BEFORE THE LOAD
CENTER AND AFTER THE
INVETER AND AC DISCONNECT.

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960

THREE LINE DIAGRAM

E-01

MODULE SPECIFICATION

MODEL
SILFAB SIL-380HC

(380W)

MODULE POWER @ STC 380W

OPEN CIRCUIT VOLTAGE:Voc 42.17V

MAX POWER VOLTAGE:Vmp 35.32V

SHORT CIRCUIT CURRENT:Isc 11.36A

MAX POWER CURRENT:Imp 10.77A

NOTE(N): EACH MICROINVERTER IS RAPID SHUTDOWN COMPLIANT

ELECTRICAL NOTESTHREE LINE DIAGRAM: DC SYSTEM SIZE - 3.800kW, AC SYSTEM SIZE - 2.900kW
MICROINVERTER SPECIFICATIONS

MODEL
ENPHASE IQ8PLUS-72-2-US

(240V)

POWER RATING 290W

MAX OUTPUT CURRENT 1.21A

CEC WEIGHTED EFFICIENCY 97%

MAX NO OF
MICROINVERTERS/BRANCH 10

MAX DC VOLTAGE 60V

1.CONDUCTORS EXPOSED TO WET
LOCATIONS SHALL BE SUITABLE FOR USE
IN WET LOCATIONS PER NEC 310.10(C).
2.CONDUCTORS EXPOSED TO SUNLIGHT
SHALL BE LISTED AS SUNLIGHT
RESISTANT PER NEC 310.10(D).
3.MAXIMUM DC/AC VOLTAGE DROP SHALL
BE NO MORE THAN 3%.
4.ALL CONDUCTORS SHALL BE IN CONDUIT
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
5.BREAKER/FUSE SIZED ACCORDING PER
NEC ARTICLE 240.
6.AC EQUIPMENT GROUNDING
CONDUCTOR (GEC) SIZED PER NEC 250.66.
7.EQUIPMENT GROUNDING CONDUCTOR
(EGC) SIZED PER NEC 250.122.
8.AMBIENT TEMPERATURE ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR IS BASED ON NEC 310.15(B)(1).
9.CURRENT CARRYING CONDUCTOR
ADJUSTMENT FACTOR IS BASED ON NEC
310.15(C)(1).
10.MAX.SYSTEM VOLTAGE CORRECTION IS
PER NEC 690.7.
11.CONDUCTORS ARE SIZED PER NEC
TABLE 310.16.

NOTE(N):
*PV METER REQUIRED TO BE BETWEEN METER & DISCONNECT.
*BASIC LABELS
*DIRECTORY PLACARD REQUIRED FOR ALL PROJECTS.
*DISCONNECT NEEDS TO BE PLACED WITHIN 10FT OF THE METER FOR ACCESSIBILITY

10' MAX

sealed 12jan2024
ELECTRICAL ONLY
NOT AN AS BUILT DRAWING SET

NOTES APPENDIX (AS APPLICABLE FOR TO BE BUILT DRAWING SETS): (A) TOTAL AC VOLTAGE DROP NOT TO EXCEED 2% TO INTERCONNECTION, < 3% FROM INVERTER(S) TO UTILITY 
TRANSFORMER. (B) ALL CONNECTORS 75C RATED. (C) ALL CONDUCTORS COPPER, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. (D) OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT NEMA3R. (E) ALL CONDUCTORS MUST BE 
PROTECTED FROM ACCESS BY A FENCE OR SUITABLE COVER, OR OUT OF REACH. (F) PROPERTY LINES, BOUNDARIES AND ALL OTHER EXTERIOR MEASUREMENTS ARE FOR 
REFERENCE ONLY, AND MUST BE VERIFIED BY A LICENSED SURVEYOR OR CIVIL ENGINEER.  (G) NO PVC ALLOWED ON ROOF OR IN ATTIC.  (H) MC4 CONNECTORS MAY NOT BE JOINED 
WITH 'MC4 COMPATIBLE' CONNECTORS. (I) TAP CONNECTIONS IN PANEL MUST NOT VIOLATE CONDITIONS OF ACCEPTABILITY FROM PANEL MANUFACTURER'S NRTL LISTING, OR FIELD 
LABEL REQUIRED. (J) PV WIRES MAY NOT BE LAID DIRECTLY ON ROOF.  (K) TY WRAPS FOR WIRE MANAGEMENT MUST BE STRUCTURAL (S21) UL APPROVED, OR EQUAL. (L) DRAWINGS 
ARE DIAGRAMMATIC AND INDICATE GENERAL ARRANGEMENT OF SYSTEMS AND WORK. CONDUIT ROUTING, WHEN INDICATED, DOES NOT SHOW ALL OFFSETS, DROPS, AND RISES OF 
RUNS. (M) BURIED CONDUITS UNDER AREAS SUBJECT TO VEHICLE TRAFFIC REQUIRE MIN 24" COVER.  (N) NM-B OR PAPER INSULATED CONDUCTORS MAY NOT BE USED EXTERIOR.  
(O) THE DEVELOPER IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING ELECTRICAL SERVICE SIZE FROM THE UTILITY, AND MAY NOT RELY SOLELY ON EXISTING BREAKER SIZES. (P) CONNECTING 
TO UTILITY EQUIPMENT REQUIRES PRIOR UTILITY CONSENT. (Q) WHEN BUILDING PV SYSTEMS WITH POWER LINE COMMUNICATIONS FOR RSD SOLUTIONS, FOLLOWING 
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS ON CONDUCTOR AND CONDUIT SPACING IS PARAMOUNT, OR HAZARD MAY RESULT. (R) NOTIFY ELECTRICAL ENGINEER WHO'S SEAL IS ON THIS 
DRAWING PRIOR TO ANY AND ALL CHANGES IN DESIGN.



ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960

ELECTRICAL CALCULATIONS

E-02

ELECTRICAL CALCULATIONS

AC WIRE CALCULATIONS:- MATERIAL:COPPER & TEMPERATURE RATING:90°C

TAG ID REQUIRED CONDUCTOR AMPACITY CORRECTED AMPACITY CALCULATION DERATED CONDUCTOR AMPACITY CHECK

1 1.21 X 10 = 12.10 X 1.25 = 15.13A 30 X 0.87 X 1 = 26.10A 15.13A < 26.10A

2 1.21 X 10 = 12.10 X 1.25 = 15.13A 40 X 0.87 X 1 = 34.80A 15.13A < 34.80A

3 1.21 X 10 = 12.10 X 1.25 = 15.13A 75 X 0.87 X 1 = 65.25A 15.13A < 65.25A

ELECTRICAL NOTES

AC WIRE SIZING CALCULATIONS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING EQUATIONS >>
REQUIRED CONDUCTOR AMPACITY:
INVERTER OUTPUT CURRENT * #OF INVERTERS = MAX CURRENT PER 690.8(A)(1)(e) 

* 125%
 = MAX CURRENT PER 690.8(B)(1)
CORRECTED AMPACITY CALCULATIONS:
DERATED CONDUCTOR AMPACITY PER 690.8(B)(2) = AMPACITY * TEMPERATURE
DERATE FACTOR * CONDUIT FILL DERATE
DERATED CONDUCTOR AMPACITY CHECK : MAX CURRENT PER 690.8(B)(1) <
 DERATED CONDUCTOR AMPACITY

1.CONDUCTORS EXPOSED TO WET
LOCATIONS SHALL BE SUITABLE FOR USE
IN WET LOCATIONS PER NEC 310.10(C).
2.CONDUCTORS EXPOSED TO SUNLIGHT
SHALL BE LISTED AS SUNLIGHT
RESISTANT PER NEC 310.10(D).
3.MAXIMUM DC/AC VOLTAGE DROP SHALL
BE NO MORE THAN 3%.
4.ALL CONDUCTORS SHALL BE IN CONDUIT
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
5.BREAKER/FUSE SIZED ACCORDING PER
NEC ARTICLE 240.
6.AC EQUIPMENT GROUNDING
CONDUCTOR (GEC) SIZED PER NEC 250.66.
7.EQUIPMENT GROUNDING CONDUCTOR
(EGC) SIZED PER NEC 250.122.
8.AMBIENT TEMPERATURE ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR IS BASED ON NEC 310.15(B)(1).
9.CURRENT CARRYING CONDUCTOR
ADJUSTMENT FACTOR IS BASED ON NEC
310.15(C)(1).
10.MAX.SYSTEM VOLTAGE CORRECTION IS
PER NEC 690.7.
11.CONDUCTORS ARE SIZED PER NEC
TABLE 310.16.

NOTE(N):
MAIN PANEL RATING:225A, MAIN BREAKER RATING:200A
120% RULE: (225A*1.2)-200A=70A =>ALLOWABLE BACKFEED IS 70A

OCPD CALCULATIONS:
INVERTER OVERCURRENT PROTECTION=
MICROINVERTER O/P I * CONTINUOUS LOAD(1.25) * #OF INVERTERS
=1.21*1.25*10=15.13 A =>PV BREAKER = 20A
ALLOWABLE BACKFEED 70A =>20A PV BREAKER
THE DESIGNED INTERCONNECTION MEETS THE 705.12(B)(2)(3)(b) REQUIREMENTS.

CONDUIT SCHEDULE

TAG ID CONDUIT SIZE CONDUCTOR NEUTRAL GROUND

1 FREE AIR (2) 12 AWG ENPHASE Q CABLE
PER BRANCH CIRCUIT NONE

1A FREE AIR (1) 12/2 ROMEX WIRE

2 1"EMT (2) 10AWG THHN/THWN-2 NONE (1) 10AWG THHN/THWN-2

3 1"EMT (2) 6AWG THHN/THWN-2 (1) 6AWG THHN/THWN-2 (1) 6AWG THHN/THWN-2

(1) 6 AWG BARE COPPER

ROMEX ACCEPTABLE FOR INTERIOR ONLY

sealed 12jan2024
ELECTRICAL ONLY
NOT AN AS BUILT DRAWING SET



WARNING PLACARD

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

WARNING PLACARDS

PL-01

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960

POWER TO THIS BUILDING IS ALSO
SUPPLIED FROM THE FOLLOWING

SOURCES WITH DISCONNECTS LOCATED
AS SHOWN

1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604
SYSTEM UTILIZES MICROINVERTERS LOCATED UNDER EACH SOLAR MODULE

!!
CAUTION:MULTIPLE SOURCES

OF POWER

CAUTION: SOLAR ELECTRIC
SYSTEM CONNECTED

ELECTRIC SHOCK HAZARD
IF GROUND FAULT IS INDICATED ALL NORMALLY
GROUNDED CONDUCTORSMAY BE  UNGROUNDED

AND MAY BE ENERGIZED

LABEL LOCATION
AC DISCONNECT , POINT OF INTERCONNECTION
[PER CODE: NEC 690.54]

ELECTRIC SHOCK HAZARD
  TERMINALS ON BOTH LINE AND LOAD SIDES
MAY BE ENERGIZED IN THE OPEN POSITION

         WARNING

LABEL LOCATION
AC DISCONNECT,POINT OF INTERCONNECTION
[PER CODE: NEC 690.13(B)]

LABEL LOCATION
WEATHER RESISTANT MATERIAL, DURABLE 
ADHESIVE, UL969 AS STANDARD TO WEATHER 
RATING (UL LISTING OF MARKINGS NOT 
REQUIRED), MIN 3

8 " LETTER HEIGHT AERIAL OR 
SIMILAR FONT NON-BOLD,PLACED WITHIN THE 
MAIN SERVICE DISCONNECT,PLACED ON THE 
OUTSIDE OF THE COVER WHEN DISCONNECT IS 
OPERATED WITH THE SERVICE PANEL CLOSED.

!

AC JUNCTION BOX FOR
PHOTOVOLTAIC

CIRCUITPHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM COMBINER PANEL

DO NOT ADD LOADS

LABEL LOCATION
COMBINER BOX
[PER CODE: NEC 690.4(B)]

INVERTER OUTPUT CONNECTION

DO NOT RELOCATE THIS
 OVERCURRENT DEVICE

INVERTER OUTPUT CIRCUIT

LABEL LOCATION
ADJACENT TO PV BREAKER
[PER CODE: 705.12(B)(2)(3)(b)]

PHOTOVOLTAIC
 SOLAR BREAKER

TURN OFF PHOTOVOLTAIC AC DISCONNECT
PRIOR TO WORKING INSIDE PANEL

LABEL LOCATION:
MAIN SERVICE PANEL
[PER CODE: NEC 110.27(C)]

         WARNING!

         WARNING!

         WARNING!

         WARNING!

         WARNING!

TURN OFF PHOTOVOLTAIC AC DISCONNECT
PRIOR TO WORKING INSIDE PANEL

LABEL LOCATION
SERVICE PANEL
PER CODE: NEC 705.10

RATED AC OPERATING CURRENT
AC NOMINAL OPERATING VOLTAGE

12.10
240

AMPS AC
VAC

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM AC DISCONNECT SWITCH

NOTES(N):
1.PLACARDS SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS
OF ARTICLES 690 AND 705, UNLESS
OTHERWISE SPECIFIED PER LOCAL AHJ
REQUIREMENTS.
2.PLACARDS SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS
OF SECTION 110.21(B) AS REQUIRED AND
SHALL COMPLY WITH ANSI Z535.4-2011,
PRODUCT SAFETY SIGNS AND LABELS.
3.PLACARDS SHALL BE PERMANENTLY
AFFIXED TO THE EQUIPMENT OR WIRING
METHOD.
4.PLACARDS SHALL BE OF SUFFICIENT
DURABILITY TO WITHSTAND THE
ENVIRONMENT INVOLVED AND SHALL BE
HANDWRITTEN.
5.PLACARDS SHALL NOT COVER EXISTING
MANUFACTURER LABELS.

TURN RAPID SHUTDOWN
SWITCH TO THE

 "OFF" POSITION TO
 SHUT DOWN PV SYSTEM

AND REDUCE
SHOCK HAZARD
IN THE ARRAY

SOLAR ELECTRIC
PV PANELS

  SOLAR PV SYSTEM EQUIPPED
WITH RAPID SHUTDOWN

INSTALLED ON: WITHIN 3 FT OF SERVICE
DISCONNECTING MEANS. MIN 3/8" BLACK TEXT ON
YELLOW BACKGROUND & 3/16" BLACK TEXT ON WHITE
BACKGROUND.
APPLICABLE CODE(S): NEC 690.56(C)(1)(a)

RAPID SHUTDOWN
SWITCH FOR SOLAR PV

SYSTEM

INSTALLED ON:RAPID SHUTDOWN SWITCH
APPLICABLE CODE(S): NEC 690.56(C)(3)

CAUTION
SOLAR POINT OF CONNECTION

DUAL POWER SUPPLY
SOURCES: UTILITY GRID AND
 PV SOLAR ELECTRIC SYSTEM

LABEL LOCATION
[PER CODE: NEC 705.12(B)(3)]

         WARNING! PHOTOVOLTAIC ARRAY
ON THE ROOF

(E) MAIN SERVICE PANEL (INTERIOR)
(E) UTILITY METER (EXTERIOR)

(N) PV METER (EXTERIOR)
(N) PV AC DISCONNECT (EXTERIOR)

(N) ENPHASE IQ COMBINER 4 (EXTERIOR)

sealed 12jan2024
ELECTRICAL ONLY
NOT AN AS BUILT DRAWING SET



SPEC SHEET

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

MODULE SPEC SHEET

SS-01

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960



SPEC SHEET

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

INVERTER SPEC SHEET

SS-02

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960



SPEC SHEET

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

COMBINER SPEC SHEET

SS-03

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960



SPEC SHEET

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

AC DISCONNECT SPEC
SHEET

SS-04

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960



SPEC SHEET

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

MOUNT SPEC SHEET

SS-05

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960



SPEC SHEET

ADDRESS:1115 SOUTHWEST WESTERN
AVENUE, TOPEKA, KS 66604

39.046714, -95.688090
APN :0973604024026000

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

NAME:STEPHEN PEASE

DATE:1/11/2024

SCALE:AS NOTED REV:A

AHJ:KS-CITY OF TOPEKA

UTILITY:EVERGY (KS)

PRN NUMBER:SNS-91335

DRAFTED BY:
P.ABHISHEAK
QC'ED BY:DOMINIC.X

PAPER SIZE:17"X11"

RAIL SPEC SHEET

SS-06

LICENSE NUMBER: 2020012960











K a n s a s  H i s t o r i c  R e s o u r c e s  I n v e n t o r y

LOCATION:

C o u n t y : S h a w n e e

A d d r e s s : 1115 SW WESTERN AVE 

A d d r e s s  R e m a r k s :

City: T o p e k a

Zip: 6 6 6 0 4

P a r c e l  I D : 097-36-0-40-24-026.00-0

L e g a l  D e s c r i p t i o n :

L e g a l  D e s c r i p t i o n  R e m a r k s : POB 247FT N OF NW COR 12TH & WESTER N W 162 N 37.5 E 162 TO ST S 37.5 A LG ST
TO POB

L a t i t u d e ,  L o n g i t u d e  1 :

L a t i t u d e ,  L o n g i t u d e  2 :

L a t i t u d e ,  L o n g i t u d e  3 :

L a t i t u d e ,  L o n g i t u d e  4 :

D a t u m : W G S 8 4

DESCRIPTION:

H i s t o r i c  N a m e : S h e r b u r n e  H o u s e

A l t e r n a t e  N a m e :

H i s t o r i c  F u n c t i o n : D o m e s t i c

S u b c a t e g o r y : Single  Dwel l ing

H i s t o r i c  F u n c t i o n  R e m a r k s : The  1913  Sanborn  Map l i s t s  the  res idence  wi th  f i r s t  d i rec tory  in format ion
found  in  1907 .

P r e s e n t  F u n c t i o n : D o m e s t i c

S u b c a t e g o r y : Single  Dwel l ing

P r e s e n t  F u n c t i o n  R e m a r k s :

R e s i d e n t i a l / C o m m e r c i a l / R e l i g i o u s  S t y l e : Q u e e n  A n n e

S e c o n d a r y  S t y l e :

B a r n  T y p e : Not  Appl icable

B r i d g e  T y p e : Not  Appl icable

L a n d s c a p e  T y p e :

P h y s i c a l  D e s c r i p t i o n / R e m a r k s : 4 bays .  Asymmetr ica l .  

P l a n  F o r m : I r r e g u l a r

C o m m e r c i a l  B u i l d i n g  T y p e : Not  Appl icable

R o o f  F o r m : Hip wi th  lower  c ross  gable(s )

Pr in t ed :  01 /23 /2024

1 7 7 - 5 4 0 0 - 0 0 4 7 3  
S h e r b u r n e  H o u s e  
1 1 1 5  S W  W E S T E R N  A V E  
T o p e k a  

 



S t o r i e s : 2

C o n d i t i o n : G o o d

P r i n c i p a l  M a t e r i a l : W o o d

C o n d i t i o n  R e m a r k s : Clapboard  s id ing .  Composi t ion  sh ingles .  S tone  foundat ion .  

A r c h i t e c t / D e s i g n e r / B u i l d e r : U n k n o w n

Y e a r  o f  C o n s t r u c t i o n : 1 9 0 7

C e r t a i n t y : E s t i m a t e d

D a t e  N o t e s : Si te  ana lys i s  ind ica tes  s t ruc tu re  was  bu i l t  be tween  1905-1913 .

G e n e r a l  R e m a r k s :

A n c i l l a r y  S t r u c t u r e s : G a r a g e / C a r r i a g e  H o u s e  

A n c i l l a r y  S t r u c t u r e  R e m a r k s :

REGISTER STATUS:

L i s t e d  i n  S t a t e  R e g i s t e r : C o n t r i b u t i n g

D a t e  o f  S t a t e  L i s t i n g :

L i s t e d  i n  N a t i o n a l  R e g i s t e r : C o n t r i b u t i n g

D a t e  o f  N a t i o n a l  L i s t i n g : 1 1 / 1 7 / 2 0 0 2

H i s t o r i c  D i s t r i c t : Holl iday Park Histor ic  Dis t r ic t  I

D e m o l i s h e d :

D a t e  D e m o l i s h e d  ( i f  a p p l i c a b l e ) :

P o t e n t i a l l y  E l i g i b l e  f o r  N a t i o n a l  R e g i s t e r :

R e g i s t e r  S t a t u s  R e m a r k s :

T h e m a t i c  N o m i n a t i o n  ( M P D F ) :

N a t i o n a l  H i s t o r i c  L a n d m a r k :      

SURVEY INFORMATION:

There  i s  no  survey  informat ion  for  th is  record .  
IMAGES & DOCUMENTS

1115  SW Wes te rn .  Eas t  e leva t ion .
n . d .

1115  SW Wes te rn .  Eas t  e leva t ion .
03 /28 /2013 .  KSHS.


	Agenda 
	February 8 Agenda (2024)

	Minutes from December 14, 2023
	Minutes 12-14-2023

	CLGR24-03 Stephen Pease
	1 Project Review Report 1115 SW Western Ave
	2 Solar Panel permit set
	3 1115 SW Western 1
	4 1115 SW Western Ave Front from sidewalk
	5 1115 SW Western from street
	6 1115 SW Western from street2
	7 KHRI


